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COUNTY OF FLUVANNA, VIRGINIA 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) #2021-05 
HISTORIC STRUCTURES REPORT, FLUVANNA COUNTY 

HISTORIC COURTHOUSE 
ADDENDUM # 1:  
Reference – Request for Proposal:  RFP #2021-05 
Title of Request for Proposal:  HISTORIC STRUCTURES REPORT, FLUVANNA COUNTY 

HISTORIC COURTHOUSE 
Issue Date:  July 8, 2021 
Bid Due Date and Time:  July 29, 2021 at 2 p.m. EST (per this addendum #1) 
 

The above RFP #2021-03 is hereby amended and modified as follows: 
 

1. Page 1 shall be changed to read:  

All sealed proposals shall be turned in no later than July 29, 2021, at 2:00 p.m. EST. 

2. The “Due Date” on page 1 and in Section 5(iv) shall be revised to be no later than July 29, 2021, at 
2:00 p.m. EST. 
 

3. Section 1 (a) is modified to state as follows: 
a. “The County of Fluvanna, Virginia (the “County”) is seeking qualified independent architectural and 

engineering firms or architectural/engineering teams (“Architect”) to submit proposals to enter into 
a contract to perform professional services to investigate, research, prepare and provide a Historic 
Structures Report including a structural report from a licensed professional engineer for the 
Fluvanna County Historic Courthouse (the “Courthouse”) consistent with the terms and conditions 
set forth in this Request for Proposals (“RFP”).” 
 

4. The third sentence of Section 4(a) is modified to state: 
a. “The County’s expectation is that the final HSR will include an executive summary, introduction, 

methodology, structural engineers report on building condition with specific identification of any 
deficiencies and issues, building history and an architectural description together with a compelling 
statement of significance, and any other information required by this RFP.” 
 

5. Section 4(a)(ii)(5) is added as follows: 
a) “(5)  A structural engineering report identifying the current conditions of the Courthouse including 

without limitation describing with particularity any conditions, issues, deficiencies, or physical problems 
or deterioration of the Courthouse with a particular focus on the exterior of the building and including 
without limitation an evaluation of the roof, windows, columns, brick, mortar, paint, flashing, trim, and 
doors.  Such section of the report shall be prepared by a licensed structural engineer with at least five 
(5) years of experience in work involving historic structures and buildings.” 

6. The following is added to the end of Section 4(a)(iii)(4):  
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a. “Paint and Mortar materials testing must be completed and reported in the HSR.  The 
means and methods of such testing are to be set out in the Offer’s proposal.” 
 

7. The following are clarifications from questions received: 
a. RFP Section 4) Scope of Services a ii 2 – Many services are clarified. Will Hazardous Materials testing 

and a report be required as a part of this scope of work?  
i. This will not be a requirement. 

b. RFP Section 4) Scope of Services a ii 2 – Many services are clarified. Will and ADA assessment and a 
report be required as a part of this scope of work? 

i. This will not be a requirement. 
c. RFP Section 4) Scope of Services a iii 2 – States that a scan will be available. Please clarify if this will 

be a point cloud or a revit model and the LOD of the scan? 
i. Please see links below for data collected by the UVA project 

1. https://search.lib.virginia.edu/sources/uva_library/items/dataset_35980 
2. https://dataverse.lib.virginia.edu/dataset.xhtml?persistentId=doi:10.18130/V3/ESQ

BIY 
3. https://youtu.be/1RG4op2R60c 

d. RFP Section 4) Scope of Services a iv 1 – The RFP requests probable associated costs for 
recommended treatments. Please confirm that a ROM estimate will meet the requirements. If not, 
please share the format and detail desired. 

i. This is for budget estimate purposes and we would hope to have costs somewhere within 
10% to plus 25% variance given that we are looking for a defined preservation treatment 
recommendations. 

e. RFP Section 5) Submission Instructions b 6 – Please define ‘local office’ experience 
i. “This section of the Offeror’s Proposal should list and describe representative clients 

currently serviced focusing on similar services and especially services provided to other 
Virginia agencies, localities, and public bodies.”  Include a general description of current 
clients for similar services especially as they related to Virginia agencies, localities and public 
bodies and related thereto “… Describe the local office experience including the project 
name and location, brief description of the project, description of the scope of services 
provided, and principal contact person.”  “Local Office” means name the specific office (if 
you have multiple “teams” or “offices” who worked on each specific named project you 
describe. 

ii. “…The Offer[or] must include a description of every project it has worked on in the last two 
(2) years for Virginia (including any department or agency thereof) or a Virginia public body 
such must include the client name, a contact point for client, and a brief description of the 
type of services provided.”  The Offeror MUST describe every project it has worked on in the 
last 2 years for Virginia or any public body thereof including details set forth supra.  This is in 
addition to requirements described in (i) above. 

f. RFP Section 5) Submission Instructions b 6 – Please confirm that for this section we should provide 
descriptions of our most relevant work related to the anticipated scope of services. 

i. As it states, we do want “list and describe representative clients currently serviced focusing 
on similar services” this can be any client. However, we also need to know “ every project it 
has worked on in the last two (2) years for Virginia (including any department or agency 
thereof) or a Virginia public body” 

https://search.lib.virginia.edu/sources/uva_library/items/dataset_35980
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g. Does city [County] want printed copies of full HSR reports or just examples to include HSR 
Covers/TOC/ select pages as reference? May we include full examples of HSRs on the thumb drive 
only? 

i. The County would very much like to see full examples. You may include them electronically, 
or if they are available online, suppling a link to easily find it would be acceptable as well. 

h. Do you wish the exterior of the roof to be surveyed? If so, will the county provide a lift or other 
means of providing access? 

i. Yes we do want the roof surveyed and a lift will not be provided.  Please also see new 
Section 4(a)(ii)(5) (see section 5 of this Addendum). 

i. On page 4 at item 4.a.iv.4, the RFP indicates “The HSR should identify repair problems and 
recommendations on a ranked priority basis and importantly provide sufficient treatment detail and 
plans to enable the County to bid for or undertake appropriate remedial treatments.”  Does this 
mean that the county is asking for biddable construction documents as part of the HSR? 

i. Not formal biddable construction documents. This is not a complex construction project, but 
a preservation treatment plan. We need enough detail and guidance so County can create 
biddable documents or undertake work in-house. We want to define the requirements and 
expectations for appropriate preservation – approach (e.g.-- repair, replace, reconstruct) 
materials, standards etc. 

j. Item 1.a.ii.2 says that detailed structural systems evaluation is not required to be investigated or 
included in the HSR.  However, Item 4.a.iii.5 says to identify areas where the structure may be 
impacted.  This could be a bit challenging to do with any substance without a structural engineer. 

i. A structural engineers report(s) should be included.  Please see new Section 4(a)(ii)(5) (see 
section 5 of this Addendum). 

k. The RFP notes that sample documents and reports should be included.  Is it expected that hard 
copies of these documents and reports are to be delivered as hard copies along with the response or 
is it acceptable to submit them on a flash drive along with the response.  The question is asked 
because a sample HSR could amount to 200 pages or more. 

i. You may include them electronically, or if they are available online, suppling a link to easily 
find it would be acceptable as well. 

l. Was a structural evaluation of the roof frame performed after the jackpost broke apart in 2017 or 
2018? 

i. Yes, This was done by Craig Swift PE Charlottesville Virginia 
m. Please confirm that the maximum amount the county has available for the HSR is $30,000. 

i. The County in a public meeting has budgeted of up to $30,000 for the HSR, this is public 
information.  The Proposal shall not include costs of services or estimated project costs.  At 
the discussion stage, the County may discuss nonbinding estimates of total project costs, 
including, but not limited to, life-cycle costing, and where appropriate, nonbinding 
estimates of price for services.  Please also refer to Section 6, and specifically to 6(f), of the 
RFP.   

n. The RFP asked what process is used to control costs and 15% of the evaluation is based on this.  
Since the county is not advertising for construction documents can you explain what the relevance 
of this is? 

i. 15% of the evaluation is based on the ability to control project costs and schedule. 
ii. Timeliness and ability to maintain a schedule is a significant concern for the County and the 

Offerors ability to provide and maintain a schedule and provide the report in a timely 
fashion will be considered – this will include consideration of the total turn-around time 
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proposed by each Offeror in terms of a draft HSR, and timeliness in responding to any 
requests for revisions made by the County.  Any offered response times will be considered 
in this portion of the evaluation. 

iii. Ability to control costs can be demonstrated in other projects where a budget was 
maintained, and by other relevant information provided by the Offeror.  However, the 
Proposal shall not include costs of services or estimated project costs.  At the discussion 
stage, the County may discuss nonbinding estimates of total project costs, including, but not 
limited to, life-cycle costing, and where appropriate, nonbinding estimates of price for 
services.  Please also refer to Section 6, and specifically to 6(f), of the RFP.   

o. Will paint analysis and mortar testing be expected for the report, or is it only required to identify 
where such testing may prove helpful? 

i. Yes, this would be a requirement.   
p. Has the documentation from the 1973 restoration been located or is it expected to be located? 

i. The County believes it has located partial documentation of the restoration; it is attached 
hereto as Exhibit 1 and made a material part of this Addendum. 

q. Is the stated $25-30,000 budget comprised exclusively of design fee for the winning bidder, or is 
there something else that the budget covers? 

i. The public records of the County identify that up to $30,000 is budgeted for the Historic 
Structures Report which is the subject of this RFP.  The Proposal shall not include costs of 
services or estimated project costs.  At the discussion stage, the County may discuss 
nonbinding estimates of total project costs, including, but not limited to, life-cycle costing, 
and where appropriate, nonbinding estimates of price for services.  Please also refer to 
Section 6, and specifically to 6(f), of the RFP.   

 
 

Note: A signed acknowledgment of this addendum must be received at the location indicated on the RFP 
either prior to the bid due date and hour or attached to your bid. Signature on this addendum does not 
substitute for your signature on the original bid document. The original bid document must be signed. 
 
Very truly yours, 

Cyndi Toler, Purchasing Officer 
Fluvanna County, Virginia 
132 Main Street 
Palmyra, VA 22963 
(434) 591-1930 
 
Name of Firm: _____________________________________  

BY:______________________________________  
Signature of duly authorized representative 
 
Title:_____________________________________ 

Date:_____________________________________ 


































